g]_j.;f'?:on Survey District Ca. 1865-1940
Myersville vicinity
Private

Ellerton is a rural village developed from about 1865 to 1900 which is
centered on the Maryland Route 17 crossing of Middle Creek at the junction of
Wolfsville, Harmony, and Harp Hill Roads. It contains five residences, most of
which are located on Wolfsville Road on the north side of Middle Creek, a
general store, a creamery, a former blacksmith shop, and a circa 1900 portable
iron steam engine used in agricultural and industrial work. The residences are
mostly log with modern artificial siding and one-story porches. One of the
houses 1is brick. All were built about 1870-1878 and one was once a combined
store and residence, the Sumers Store at 10651 Wolfsville Road. The other
store was the Thomas F. Bittle Store, built about 1867-68, which is a
well-preserved representative of the rural general store of the late 19th
century. The creamery was built about 1890 and also retains much of its
original exterior character. Both the Bittle Store and the creamery are now
storage buildings. Three of the dwellings also have contributing domestic
outbuildings. The village of Ellerton had a post office in the Bittle Store, a
school, and at least one other shop, a shoemaker's. A stone foundation on the
south side of Wolfsville Road is the probable location of the shoemaking shop
and the school stood on the north side near the east end of the survey
district. The district exemplifies the development of rural communities in
response to physical features and transportation networks in the late 19th

century, as well as the simple vernacular architectural style of the pericd.
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Ellerton Survey District
Myersville

Frederick County

HISTORTC CONTEXT':

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORTC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgomery
Counties, and Baltimore City)

Chronological /Development Period:
Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial /Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930
Modern Period, A.D. 1930-Present

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Community Planning
Economic (Commercial & Industrial)

Resource Types:
Category: District
Environment: Village

Historic Function and Use:
Domestic/single dwelling/residence
Domestic/secondary structure/kitchen
Domestic/secondary structure/smokehouse
Commerce/Trade/department store/general store
Industry/Processing/Extration/energy facility

Known Design Source: None



Ellerton Survey District SURVEY No. F-4-63
Frederick County

7.1 Description (Continued)

on the principal east elevation. Probably in the 1890's,the east elevation of
the store was extended with a flat-roofed section, to which an attic space was
later added, restoring a gable roof profile at an irregular angle. The
evidence of these changes is visible on the south elevation of the building,
where the original stone foundation, the differences in roofline and siding are
clearly seen. The east elevation of the enlarged store had four bays, with a
fifth bay added in the early 20th century on the north elevation. The exterior
is covered with german siding. The entrance is in the center bay with a dutch
door with raised panels under a three-light transom. The first story windows
are covered with raised panel shutters; the second story windows have 6/6
sash. The roof is standing seam metal. The west elevation of the original
store is obscured by another addition of the early 20th century. This
one-story shed section has a stone foundation, which is discernible from the
original foundation by the difference in stone and pointing technique on the
south elevation. The addition has board and batten siding. The store was
operated by Thomas F. Bittle until 1917 and by his son J. Thomas Bittle from
1917 until its closing in about 1950. Since that time, it has been used
primarily as a storage building.

Frick Steam Engine: Immediately in front of the Bittle Store's east elevation
is a circa 1900 portable steam engine, identified on its boiler as the Frick
"Eclipse" model. The engine is basically a long cylindrical tank with a drive
wheel mechanism on the top and a smoke stack near one end of the tank. A photo
in The History of Wolfsville shows that the stack was once much taller than at
present, reaching above the roofline of the store. No other information about
the engine has been researched; however, similar engines are described in the
Wolfsville history as being taken from farm to farm to run farm egquipment and
saw mills. This engine is now owned by Harold lLeatherman, son of the owner of
the parcel on which the store is located.

Creamery, west side of Harp Hill Road, south of Bittle Store: The two-story
frame creamery was built about 1890 and was operated by Elmer and Simon
Raymer. The building was apparently owned by Bittle. It has german siding and
shed additions of the early 1920's on the west and east elevations. The gable
and shed roofs are standing seam metal. A vertical tongue-and—-groove door is
located in the north elevation and sliding doors are located in the east side
addition, probably for drive-in deliveries. The windows are 6/6 and are in the
east elevation and the second level of the central section.

Barn: A small frame bank barn probably associated with the creamery is located
just south of the creamery building. It has vertical siding and a stone
foundation. Two sliding doors are located on the east elevation above the
narrow forebay. The gable roof is covered with corrugated metal. The barn was
probably built in the 1890's.

10708 Harp Hill Road: The two-story brick dwelling was built about 1870 and
has four bays on the east elevation with double entrances in the inner bays. A
one-story porch with brackets and chamfered posts extends across the facade.
The wood 1lintels and sills of the window openings are plain and the sash is
2/2. The slate roof has interior end chimneys. A rear shed addition is
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7.2 Description (Continued)

attached to the west elevation. A non—contributing concrete block garage is
also located on the property.

Poffenberger blacksmith shop: The one-story log blacksmith shop is located on
the northeast corner of Harp Hill and Wolfsville Roads just north of the
bridge. Its exterior appearance is greatly altered, with metal siding and an
extended standing seam metal roof with an overhang on the south elevation above
modern double 1lift type doors. The windows in the side elevations are 3/3.
The interior was not accessible for this survey; however, Mrs. Arthur
Leatherman, one of the property owners, said the original log structure is
enclosed within the exterior walls and roof and that it is now used for
equipment storage. The original stone foundation has been replaced with
concrete block. The shop was probably built about 1873 when Hezekiah
Poffenberger purchased 60 square perches from Elias Routzahn, from whose farm
the lots along the north side of Wolfsville Road were subdivided.

Poffenberger House, 10716 Wolfsville Road: Built about 1873, the two-story log
dwelling has a three-bay main elevation facing south. Its exterior is
currently covered with composition krick siding. A one-story porch and two
entrances are located on the south elevation. The sash is 1/1 replacement,
flanked by modern metal shutters. A two-story rear wing extends to the north
and has an enclosed two-story porch on the east elevation. The pressed metal
gable roof has an exterior chimney on the west elevation of the main section.
At the rear of the wing is a log wash house with modern siding and an extended
gable roof of corrugated metal. The hood on the south end shelters the
entrance door of vertical boards. An exterior brick chimney is located at the
north gable end. A frame smokehouse stands immediately west of the wash
house. It has vinyl siding and a standing seam metal roof with a vertical
board door in the south elevation. Both outbuildings date from the same period
as the dwelling. A non-contributing concrete block garage is located east of
the wash house.

Dr. Wachter House, 10726 Wolfsville Road: The two-story log house was built
about 1870 and, from about 1881 to 1903, was occupied by Dr. Charles L.
Wachter, a physician. It has four bays with double entrances and a one-story
porch with brackets and turned colums. The exterior is covered with
composition siding and the roof is also composition. The chimneys are located
at each interior erd. The windows are 2/2 with segmental arched frames. A
one-story shed addition is located on the north elevation. A frame or log
summer kitchen 1is located northwest of the house. It is one story in height,
with german siding, 2/2 windows, and a standing seam metal roof. The exterior
chimney 1is located at the west end and is stone and brick. Just northwest of
the sumer kitchen is a frame shed, the use of which is undetermined. It has
metal siding and a standing seam metal roof. Both outbuildings appear to date
from the last quarter of the 19th century.

Wastler-Bartgis House, 10732 Wolfsville Road: The two-story log or frame
dwelling was built about 1872-1878 and was consecutively owned by two
shoemakers, David Wastler (1878-1888) and Albert W. Bartgis (1888-1909). The
stone foundation on the south side of the road opposite the house is thought to
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7.3 Description (Continued)

be the site of the shoemaking shop. The house has three bays with a one-story
porch on the south elevation. The exterior is covered with aluminum siding on
the seconrd story and brick veneer on the first story. The 2/2 windows are
flanked by replacement metal shutters. A two-story rear wing extends from the
north side of the house with a one-story porch on the east elevation. An
exterior brick chimney is on the east end of the main section. The roof is
composition material. Two non-contributing concrete block outbuildings are
located north and east of the house.

Sumers Store, 10651 Wolfsville Road: The former Summers Store is now a
private residence. Built about 1878, the frame or log building is covered with
vinyl siding and has four bays on the west elevation with double entrances, one
of which 1is now covered with siding. A one-story porch with brackets, a
spindle frieze, and turned columns shelters the west elevation. The roof is
covered with composition material and has interior end chimneys. The sash is

4/1 replacement. A two-story rear wing extends from the northeast corner of
the house and a shed addition of recent date has been built on the east end of
the wing. A frame summer kitchen is located southeast of the house. It has

german siding and an exterior brick chimney, with a standing seam metal roof.
The door 1in the west elevation is vertical boards. The History of Wolfsville
states that the store may have been in existence by the Civil War; the title
research does not confirm this, the earliest deed being 1882 with reference to
a survey done in 1878. The store was supposed to have been originally operated
by Washington Gaver and from 1882 to 1971, with intermittent closings, by the
Summers family.

Property owners:

P. 246; P. 102: Pauline G. and Arthur T. Leatherman
10716 Wolfsville Rd.
Myersville, MD 21773

P. 282: William B. Sulick
10651 Wolfsville Rd.
Myersville, MD 21773

P. 103: R. Glen and Edna Grossnickle
10726 Wolfsville Rd.
Myersville, MD 21773

P. 104: Norman W. Fox
10732 Wolfsville Rd.
Myersville, MD 21773
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8.1 Significance (Continued)

History of Wolfsville and the Catoctin District (1972) suggests other rural

industries and services in the vicinity of Ellerton which were considered part of
the village's economic life because of its central location and mail service.
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u38, P17, 102, 103, 104, 246 Survey No. F-4-63

MARYLAND INVENTORY OF
Maryland Historical Trust MISTCRIC PROPERTIES
State Historic Sites Inventory Form DOE __yes X no

Magi No.

1. Name (indicate preferred name)

historic Ellerton Survey District

and/or common

2. Location

10651-10732 Wolfsville Rd.; 10708 Harp Hill Road

street & number ____ not for publication

city, town Myersville _X_ vicinity of congressional district 6th

state Maryland county Frederick

3. Classification

Category Ownership Status Present Use

_X__ district ____ public X occupied ___ agriculture —___ museum

___ building(s) _%X_ private ____ unoccupied X __ commercial ___ park

— structure — both ____work in progress — educational X private residence

—__site Public Acquisition Accessible . entertainment — religious

__ object ____in process X yes: restricted ____government scientific

— being considered __ yes: unrestricted industrial ____transportation
_x not applicable __ _ po ___ military ___ other:

4- Owner Of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Multiple property owners (see Section 7)
street & number telephone no.:
city, town state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber
street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio
city,town  Frederick state Md. 21701

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

title

date —federal ___state ___ county ___ local

Jepository for survey records

clty, town state




7. Description Survey No.  F-4-63

Condition Check one Check one

— excellent — deteriorated ____ unaltered _X__ original site

X __good —__ruins X altered ___moved date of move
— fair ___ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE COUNT: 15

The Ellerton Survey District comprises the rural village established about
1865-70 at the crossing of the Myersville-Wolfsville road, now Wolfsville Road (Md.
17) at Middle Creek about 2 miles northeast of Myersville, Frederick County,
Maryland. The district contains 5 dwellings, three of which have contributing
outbuildings, a store and a creamery now used as storage structures, a small barn
associated with the store, a circa 1900 portable iron steam engine formerly used in
agricultural and industrial work, and a blacksmith shop currently used as an

equipment shed. Fifteen (83%) of the 18 buildings contribute to the district's
significance. The district is residential in use except for an engine repair shop

in a non—contributing building near the center of the district. The buildings are
located primarily on the north side of Middle Creek, with one dwelling, a former
store with a contributing outbuilding, on the south side of the creek. Most of the
buildings date from about 1870 to about 1900, and are vernacular in style with log,
wood frame, and brick structure, with stone foundations. The stores retain german
siding, but the other wood structures have composition, vinyl, or other artificial
siding applied during the past 40 vyears. One of the dwellings is brick. The
general condition of the buildings is good, although most have had some repair and
replacement of windows, doors, porches, and roofs. At least 5 non-contributing
structures are present, including the engine repair shop and several concrete bloc™
garages.

The village apparently developed as a result of the road crossing the creek, one
of the 1links between Myersville and Wolfsville. The establishment of a general
store by Thomas F. Bittle in 1868 appears to have been the anchor of the settlement,
although the second store, the present 10651 Wolfsville Road, may have been in
existence by the Civil War, according to The History of Wolfsville and the Catoctin
District (p. 132). In the late 19th and early 20th century, the village had a
school and at least one other shop. The school was a one-room building built about
1872 that was located on the north side of Wolfsville Road near the east end of the
survey district; it was probably demolished in the 1930's. The shop was a
shoemaker's store which stood on the south side of Wolfsville Road on the creek
bank, probably the stone foundation near the east end of the district opposite 10732

Wolfsville Rd. This structure was demolished after 1950, but the exact date is
unknown. The pattern of buildings responded to the junction of several roads at the
creek crossing, the present Wolfsville, Harmony, and Harp Hill Roads. The

relatively 1level topography of the northern bank may have been a key factor in the
location of most of the buildings along the road paralleling the creek. The
resulting layout of the district remains rather scattered, with open space between
each dwelling and the houses back to open land or more recently subdivided house
lots set back from Wolfsville Road.

Following are brief descriptions of the buildings in the survey district:

Thomas F. Bittle Store, west side of Harp Hill Road, north of bridge: The circa
1867-68 frame, two-story store building originally had an exposed stone foundatic



8. Significance Survey No. F-4-63

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion
——1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ____conservation — law —__ science
_1500-1599 ____ agriculture —___ economics — literature __ sculpture
—1600-1699 _ X architecture _ education — military _ social/
— 1700-1799 ___ art X__engineering — music humanitarian
_X 1800-1899 _x commerce — exploration/settiement ___ philosophy _ theater
— 1900- ____ communications — industry — politics/government ____ transportation
—_invention ___ other (specity)
Specific dates C. 1865-1940 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: x A B xC _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A B _C _b _E _F G
Level of Significance: _ national _ state x local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
support.

The Ellerton Survey District exemplifies the development of a rural community in
the period circa 1865 to 1940, including the common vernacular architectural style
of the last quarter of the 19th century and the random plan responding to physical
features and transportation networks which is characteristic of small villages.
Ellerton developed from about 1865 to 1900, never growing much beyond its present
general size. The district currently contains five dwellings and three formerly
comrercial buildings. The major losses in structures have been a shoemaker's shop
and a school; however, the district has a well-preserved representative of a rural
general store of the period, a late 19th century creamery, a much-altered blacksmith
shop, and a former store now used as a residence. The dwellings have at least some
©og structure under modern siding, and three have contributing domestic
outbuildings. The structures in the district have been altered primarily in their
exterior finishes and in the rear wings of the dwellings, where kitchens and
enclosed porches are common. The district also has a contributing engineering
structure, a circa 1900 Frick "Eclipse" portable steam engine, which was used to run
agricultural machines and saw mills at different locations in the vicinity. The two
stores operated, sometimes with intermittent closings, from about 1868 to the early
1950's and an engine repair shop in a non-contributing building carries on the
commercial activity which led to the establishment of Ellerton.

Thomas F. Bittle (1838-1917) established a general store at Ellerton in
1867-1868, the first documented commercial enterprise in the vicinity; however, a
second general store may have been opened around the same time by Washington Gaver,
although this has not been verified by land records and local histories. By 1882,
the possible Gaver store was definitely established, being purchased by John F.
Summers, whose family continued the business, with occasional periods of being
closed, until 1971. The important creek crossing was a strategic choice for a
business site as four roads met at the bridge and water power was available for
milling and other needs. Although no mill buildings are located within the survey
district, the 1873 Titus Atlas map shows that saw and grist mills were nearby on
Middle Creek. Bittle's Store had a post office by the early 1880's and most of the
farmers and other merchants had mail delivered to Ellerton. A school was built by
1873 and a blacksmith and a shoemaker both had shops in Ellerton by that year.
Later in the 19th century, a creamery was run by a successor blacksmith, evidence of
diversification of commercial activities. Albert W. Bartgis (1854-?) came to
llerton as a shoemaker in about 1885 and later became a produce dealer. The
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Land Records of Frederick County
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10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominated property 10 acres
Quadrangle name _Myersville, Md. Quadrangle scale _1:24000

UTM References do NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification
Boundary as shown on attached USGS quad map section.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept.date May 1992

street & number 12 E. Church Street telephone 696-2958

city or town Frederick state Md. 21701

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of
individual property rights.

MARY L~ o oo wiin AL TRUST

return to: Maryland Historical Trust DHCP/DHCL
Shaw House 100 COMMUNITY PLAC .
21 State Circle CROWNSVILLE, MD 21032-2023

Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 269-2438

PS-2746
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